
 

 
 

Corporate Parenting Panel  AGENDA 
 
 
DATE: 
 

Tuesday 11 January 2011 
 

TIME: 
 

6.00 pm 
 

VENUE: 
 

Committee Room 6, 
Harrow Civic Centre 
 

 
 
 

 
 MEMBERSHIP      (Quorum 3) 
   
  Chairman: 

 
Councillor Mitzi Green  

 
  Councillors: 

 
Margaret Davine 
William Stoodley 
 

Husain Akhtar 
Christine Bednell (VC) 
Janet Mote 
 

  
 

  
 

Reserve Members: 
 

1. Brian Gate 
2. Raj Ray 
3. Varsha Parmar 
 

1. Lynda Seymour 
2. Mark Versallion 
3. John Nickolay 
 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact:  Mark Doherty, Acting Democratic Services Officer 
Tel:  020 8416 8050    E-mail:  mark.doherty@harrow.gov.uk 

 



 

 

1. ATTENDANCE BY RESERVE MEMBERS    
 
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve Members. 

 
Reserve Members may attend meetings:- 
 
(i) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve; 
(ii) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the meeting; and  
(iii) the meeting notes at the start of the meeting at the item ‘Reserves’ that the 

Reserve Member is or will be attending as a reserve; 
(iv) if a Reserve Member whose intention to attend has been noted arrives after 

the commencement of the meeting, then that Reserve Member can only act 
as a Member from the start of the next item of business on the agenda after 
his/her arrival. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 To receive declarations of personal or prejudicial interests, arising from business to 

be transacted at this meeting, from: 
 
(a) all Members of the Committee, Sub Committee, Panel or Forum; 
(b) all other Members present in any part of the room or chamber. 
 

3. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
 That the minutes of the meeting held on 12 October 2010 be taken as read and 

signed as a correct record. 
 

4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS    
 
 To receive questions (if any) from local residents or organisations under the 

provisions of Executive Procedure Rule 51 (Part 4D of the Constitution). 
 

5. PETITIONS    
 
 To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors under 

the provisions of Executive Procedure Rule 49 (Part 4D of the Constitution). 
 

6. DEPUTATIONS    
 
 To receive deputations (if any) under the provisions of Executive Procedure Rule 51 

(Part 4D of the Constitution). 
 

7. INFORMATION REPORT - ACTIVITY AND PERFORMANCE   (Pages 7 - 40) 
 
 Report of the Corporate Director Children’s Services. 

 
8. DISPLAY FOR COUNCILLORS   (Pages 41 - 44) 
 
 Report of the Corporate Director Children’s Services. 

 
9. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 Which cannot otherwise be dealt with. 

 AGENDA - PART I   
 



 

 Corporate Parenting Panel - 12 October 2010 - 6 - 

 
 
 

CORPORATE PARENTING PANEL   
MINUTES 

 

12 OCTOBER 2010 
 
 
Chairman:  Councillor Mitzi Green 
   
Councillors: * Husain Akhtar 

* Christine Bednell (Vice-
 Chairman in the Chair) 
* Margaret Davine  
 

* Brian Gate (1) 
* Janet Mote  
* William Stoodley 
 

In attendance: 
(Councillors) 
 

*   Mark Versallion 
 

Minute 16 

* Denotes Member present 
(1) Denotes category of Reserve Member 
 
 

11. Attendance by Reserve Members   
 
RESOLVED:  To note the attendance at this meeting of the following duly 
appointed Reserve Member:- 
 
Ordinary Member  
 

Reserve Member 
 

Councillor Mitzi Green Councillor Brian Gate 
 

12. Declarations of Interest   
 
RESOLVED:  To note that there were no declarations of interests made. 
 

13. Minutes   
 
RESOLVED:  That the minutes of the meeting held on 21 July 2010, be taken 
as read and signed as a correct record subject to the inclusion of the following 
paragraph at the end of Minute 9, Teenage Placement Strategy: 
 

Agenda Item 3 
Pages 1 to 6 

1



 

Corporate Parenting Panel - 12 October 2010 - 7 - 

Members expressed concern that the Teenage Placement Strategy had been 
referred to Cabinet without being considered by the Corporate Parenting 
Panel prior to its referral. 
 

14. Public Questions, Petitions and Deputations   
 
RESOLVED:  To note that no public questions or petitions were received or 
deputations put at this meeting. 
 
RECOMMENDED ITEM   
 

15. RECOMMENDATION REPORT - Children in Care Council   
 
An officer introduced a report of the Corporate Director Children’s Services, 
which set out the progress made in formalising the terms of reference of 
Harrow’s Children in Care Council, and the drafting of the Harrow Pledge. 
 
He advised that: 
 
• the Children in Care Council would now be known as Beyond Limits; 
 
• the purpose of the Harrow Pledge was to provide a publicly available 

document that would explain depth what children should expect from 
their Corporate Parents; 

 
• officers in Children’s Services shared the responsibility to deliver the 

Harrow Pledge as a corporate strategy. 
 
Members of the Panel were pleased with the work undertaken, and 
congratulated representatives of Beyond Limits present at the meeting in 
formalising the Harrow Pledge.  They agreed that it would positively benefit 
young people in a pastoral and academic sense. 
 
Resolved to RECOMMEND: (to Cabinet) That 
 
(1) the draft terms of reference be approved, in particular the interface 

proposals between Beyond Limits and the Corporate Parenting Panel; 
 
(2) the Harrow Pledge as outlined by Beyond Limits be adopted; 
 
(3) two non-voting members of Beyond Limits be appointed to the 

Corporate Parenting Panel. 
 
Reason for Decision:  To provide a forum for Children Looked After (CLA) to 
participate and influence policy, and enable them to discuss issues relating to 
their own direct experiences of the services they have received. 
 
Care Matters-Time for Change 2007, stipulates that Local Authorities were 
expected to set up Children In Councils as a way of ensuring that children 
who were looked after had a voice. 
 

2



 

- 8 -  Corporate Parenting Panel - 12 October 2010 

It was also expected that local Children in Care Councils monitor the 
implementation of locally produced Pledges and in conjunction with Corporate 
Parenting Panels. 
 
RESOLVED ITEMS   
 

16. INFORMATION REPORT - Update on the Teenage Placement Strategy   
 
The Divisional Director Safeguarding, Family Placement and Support, 
provided a verbal update on the progress made with the Teenage Placement 
Strategy.  She advised that: 
 
• placement pressure was most felt surrounding teenage Children 

Looked After (CLA).  Earlier this year, three CLA Challenge Panels 
took place where placements of all CLA and care leavers aged sixteen 
plus were reviewed;  

 
• there were 50 CLA either in or requiring semi-independent 

accommodation; 
 

• the Leaving Care LEAN review being conducted in conjunction with 
Capita, included direct input from Care Leavers about what worked for 
them and how independent living support could be developed further; 

 
• as a matter of good practice, foster carers and care leavers allowances 

were being reviewed to ensure that these remained relevant and 
appropriate; 

 
• on 14 September 2010, Cabinet agreed to the change of use for the 

Honeypot Lane Children’s Residential Unit.  The new Unit would 
accommodate seven CLA aged 16-18 years living semi-independently 
as a stepping stone towards full independence; 

 
• it was intended for the structure of the workforce at the Unit to be 

finalised by November 2010 to ensure that an appropriate skills mix 
was maintained.   Stakeholders, staff, Unions and Partners had 
engaged positively in the consultation process and no complaints had 
been received about the proposed operating model.  The Voluntary 
Severance Scheme (VSS) and possibilities of redeployment were 
being considered by existing employees’ at the Unit.  The intention was 
to fully implement the new Honeypot Lane operating model by April 
2011.  Dialogue with key partners, police and Health Services was 
ongoing to finalise the proposed operating model. 

 
In response to questions, the officer advised that: 
 
• the purpose of semi-independent units such as what was being 

proposed for Honeypot Lane, was to provide a resource to support 
CLA in the transition to full independence.  All CLA requiring semi-
independent accommodation would be assessed to gauge their 
readiness and suitability; 

 

3



 

Corporate Parenting Panel - 12 October 2010 - 9 - 

• Life Skills training for CLA was best provided where they were living, 
using the existing support networks available to the young person; 

 
• the Life Skills Training Programme included a number of essential 

areas including practical training such as basic household 
maintenance.  The training also sought to support young people with 
making and maintaining relationships, building networks and 
developing emotional resilience; 

 
• the Life Skills Training Programme would be delivered in both one-to-

one and small group based sessions.  The frequency of formal training  
sessions would be increased, with foster carers implementing the skills 
learnt through the training at the earliest possible opportunity; 

 
• CLA were fully supported in engaging with work experience 

opportunities. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the verbal update be noted. 
 

17. INFORMATION REPORT - Activity and Performance   
 
An officer introduced a report, which set out key data relating to Children 
Looked After (CLA) and children with Child Protection Plans (CPP).  It also 
provided a performance position for National Indicators for Children’s Social 
Care. 
 
She advised that: 
 
• there were approximately 131 CLA and 191 children with CPP from 

Harrow; 
 
• there were 47 CLA from Brent currently placed in Harrow. Cross 

borough placement with neighbouring authorities was an area that 
needed to be considered in terms of impact on other local services; 

 
• provisional results showed that 50% of HarrowCLA attained at least 

Level 4 in Maths and English at Key Stage Level 2 (KS2); 
 

• provisional statistics showed that 11.8% of Harrow CLA attained 5 or 
more A* - C in their GCSE’s, including Maths and English. 

 
In response to questions, officers advised that: 
 
• the academic data outlined in the report were provisional as official 

GCSE results for the 2010 academic year would not be published until 
January 2011; 

 
• referral targets were set by the Divisional Director Safeguarding, 

Family Placement and Support, the Referral and Assessment Service 
Manager and the Performance Manager to improve the service 
provided; 

 

4



 

- 10 -  Corporate Parenting Panel - 12 October 2010 

• factors that contributed to certain National Indicator performance 
targets not being met were: 

 
(i) challenges in recruiting and retaining qualified social workers; 

 
(ii) cover arrangements to account for two members of staff from 

the Duty and Assessment Team who were currently on 
maternity leave; 

 
(iii) the review of the statutory guidance (Working Together), meant 

that all assessments had to be undertaken by a qualified Social 
Worker.  These assessments were previously carried out by 
Social Care Assistants; 

 
(iv) the unrelenting nature of contracts and referrals received; 
 

• the Social Work Reform Board and the Munro Review were being 
examined to identify strategies for recruiting and retaining qualified 
Social Workers; 

 
• Foster Carers were approved by either the Local Authority or 

Independent Agencies.  Children could be placed in different boroughs 
depending on their needs and placement availability; 

 
• there were ongoing efforts to ensure that CLA from Harrow were 

placed with carers living in the borough; 
 
• all adoption and special guardianship arrangements were granted 

through Court Orders; 
 
• benchmarked figures detailing relationships and trends with 

neighbouring boroughs would be presented to a future meeting of the 
Panel; 

 
• the current National Indicator figures as at September 2010 were 

positive, and would be presented to future meeting of the Panel. 
 
RESOLVED:  That 
 
1) the report be noted; 

 
2) benchmarked comparison figures with neighbouring boroughs be 

presented to a future meeting of the Panel; 
 

3) the most recent National Indicator figures be presented to a future 
meeting of the Panel. 

 
(Note:  The meeting, having commenced at 6.00 pm, closed at 8.10 pm). 
 
 
 
(Signed) COUNCILLOR CHRISTINE BEDNELL 
(Vice-Chairman in the Chair)

5



6

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
REPORT FOR: 
 

CORPORATE 
PARENTING PANEL 
 

Date: 
 

11 January 2011 

Subject: 
 

INFORMATION REPORT – Activity 
and Performance 

Key Decision: 
 

No 
 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Catherine Doran, Corporate Director of 
Children’s Services 

Exempt: 
 

No 
 

Enclosures: 
 

1) CLA & CPP Activity and 
Performance Report; 

 
2) CIN Census 2009/10 National 

Indicators, National and statistical 
neighbour comparison. 

 
Section 1 – Summary 
 
 
This report is for information and sets out key data relating to Children Looked 
After (CLA) and Children with Child Protection Plans (CPP), plus performance 
position for National Indicators for Children’s Social Care. 
There is an attachment which provides information requested by panel 
members at the last meeting. 
 
FOR INFORMATION 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 7 
Pages 7 to 40 

7



 

Section 2 – Report 
 
Key Points:   
 
• Data is shown to end of November 2010. 
• Number of Looked After Children remains low.  Number of children 

subject to Child Protection Plan remains high. 
• 16 adoptions/SGOs granted since beginning of year (April) which is very 

strong performance. 
• Timeliness of Initial Assessments is now measured to 10 working days 

(previously 7 working days).  Current performance for this indicator is 
below target and below our performance last year, but above Statistical 
Neighbours and England average last year.  

• Educational achievement indicators will be published in mid-December. 
A report will be tabled. 

• A summary of published National Indicator performance and 
benchmarking is attached. 

 
Options considered 
 
Not applicable 
 
Financial Implications 
 
There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 
Risk Management Implications 
 
The risk relating to workload and staffing for child protection is already 
included in the corporate risk register. 
Risk included on Directorate risk register?  Yes 
Separate risk register in place?  No 
  
Corporate Priorities 
 
• Improve support for vulnerable people 
 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 
   on behalf of the 
Name:  Emma Stabler X  Chief Financial Officer 
 
Date:   6 December 2010 

   
 
Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 
Papers 
Contact: 
David Harrington, Service Manager, Performance 
020 8424 9248, david.harrington@harrow.gov.uk, or 
Dipika Patel, Senior Performance Officer, Children’s Social Care 
020 8424 9258, dipika.patel@harrow.gov.uk 

8



 
     

Co
rp

or
ate

 Pa
ren

tin
g 

 

Ja
nu

ar
y 2

01
1 

     
CL

A 
& 

CP
P A

cti
vit

y 
To

 en
d o

f N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

0 

9



Cr
ea

ted
 by

 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce

 Te
am

 
 

Pa
ge

 2 
of 

19
 

 
CO

NT
EN

TS
 

  1) 
SA

FE
TY

 O
F V

UL
NE

RA
BL

E C
HI
LD

RE
N 
(C
HI
LD

RE
N 
LO

OK
ED

 A
FT

ER
)..
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
...3

 

2) 
CL

A 
AG

E 
AN

D 
GE

ND
ER

 B
RE

AK
DO

WN
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....
....

....
....

....
...4

 

3) 
CL

A 
AG

E 
AN

D 
ET

HN
IC
ITY

 B
RE

AK
DO

WN
....

....
....

....
....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....
....

....
....

....
...5

 

4) 
CL

A 
BY

 ET
HN

IC
ITY

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
6 

5) 
CL

A 
BY

 ET
HN

IC
ITY

 &
 G
EN

DE
R.

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

...7
 

6) 
CL

A 
BY

 PL
AC

EM
EN

T T
YP

E.
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
.8 

7) 
BR

EA
KD

OW
N 
OF

 C
AT

EG
OR

Y O
F N

EE
D 
OF

 C
LA

....
....

....
....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....
....

....
...9

 

8) 
CH

ILD
RE

N 
LO

OK
ED

 A
FT

ER
 - O

TH
ER

 D
AT

A.
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....
....

....
....

....
10

 

9) 
SA

FE
TY

 O
F V

UL
NE

RA
BL

E C
HI
LD

RE
N 
(C
HI
LD

RE
N 
PR

OT
EC

TIO
N 
PL

AN
S)
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
...1

1 
10
) C

HI
LD

RE
N 
WH

O 
HA

VE
 A
 C
PP

 B
Y 
AG

E 
AN

D 
GE

ND
ER

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....
....

12
 

11
) E

TH
NI
CI
TY

 O
F C

HI
LD

RE
N 
WI

TH
 A
 C
HI
LD

 PR
OT

EC
TIO

N 
PL

AN
....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
..1

3 
12
) E

TH
NI
CI
TY

 &
 G
EN

DE
R 
BR

EA
KD

OW
N 
OF

 C
HI
LD

RE
N 
WI

TH
 A
 C
HI
LD

 PR
OT

EC
TIO

N 
PL

AN
....

....
.14

 

13
) C

PP
 B
Y C

AT
EG

OR
Y O

F A
BU

SE
....

....
....

....
....

....
....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....
....

....
....

....
....

....
.15

 

14
) C

PP
 C
AT

EG
OR

Y O
F A

BU
SE

 B
Y E

TH
NI
CI
TY

 B
RE

AK
DO

WN
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

16
 

15
) D

UR
AT

IO
N 
OF

 C
HI
LD

 PR
OT

EC
TIO

N 
PL

AN
S.
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....
....

....
....

....
17

 

16
) N

UM
BE

RS
 O
F C

HI
LD

RE
N 
LO

OK
ED

 A
FT

ER
 &
 C
HI
LD

RE
N 
WI

TH
 C
HI
LD

 PR
OT

EC
TIO

N 
PL

AN
....

..1
8 

17
) K

EY
 PE

RF
OR

MA
NC

E 
IN
DI
CA

TO
RS

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

...1
9 

 

10



Cr
ea

ted
 by

 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce

 Te
am

 
 

Pa
ge

 3 
of 

19
 

1) 
Sa

fet
y o

f V
uln

era
ble

 C
hil

dr
en

 (C
hil

dr
en

 Lo
ok

ed
 A
fte

r) 
  Th

ere
 w
ere

 13
3 c

hil
dre

n l
oo
ke
d a

fte
r in

 H
arr

ow
 on

 30
 N
ov
em

be
r 2

01
0. 

 Th
e b

ar 
ch
art

 be
low

 sh
ow

s t
he
 nu

mb
er 

of 
ch
ild
ren

 lo
ok
ed
 af

ter
 by

 qu
art

ers
 fro

m 
20
06
. 

 

02040608010
0

12
0

14
0

16
0

18
0 Se

p-0
6
De

c-0
6
Ma

r-0
7

Jun
-07

Se
p-0

7
De

c-0
7
Ma

r-0
8

Jun
-08

Se
p-0

8
De

c-0
8
Ma

r-0
9

Jun
-09

Se
p-0

9
De

c-0
9
Ma

r-1
0

Jun
-10

Se
p-1

0
De

c-1
0

16
0

15
2

15
9

16
0

16
2

15
3

14
0

14
7

14
6

15
9

15
0

15
4

16
3

16
3

16
0

14
5

13
1

13
3

Count

M
on

th

Nu
mb

er 
of 

Ch
ild

ren
 Lo

oke
d A

fte
r a

t Q
ua

rte
rly

 Int
erv

als

 
  Th

ere
 ar

e a
n a

dd
itio

na
l 2
4 c

hil
dre

n r
ec
eiv

ing
 re

sp
ite
 ca

re 
/ s
ho
rt t

erm
 br

ea
ks
 (th

es
e a

re 
no
t in

clu
de
d i
n t

he
 13

3 l
oo
ke
d a

fte
r 

ch
ild
ren

). 
 

11



Cr
ea

ted
 by

 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce

 Te
am

 
 

Pa
ge

 4 
of 

19
 

 

2) 
CL

A 
Ag

e a
nd

 G
en

de
r B

rea
kd

ow
n  

 

010203040506070

Un
de

r 1
 ye

ar
1 -

4 y
ea

rs
5 -

9 y
ea

rs
10

 -1
5 y

ea
rs

16
 -1

7 y
ea

rs

2
3

2

12
19

1

10
6

35
43

3

13
8

47

62
Count

Ag
e B

an
d

Ch
ild

ren
 Lo

oke
d A

fte
r b

y A
ge

 an
d G

en
de

r 

Fe
ma

le
Ma

le
To

tal

 
 Ag

e
Fe

ma
le

Ma
le

To
tal

Un
de

r 1
 ye

ar
2

1
3

1 -
 4 

ye
ars

3
10

13
5 -

 9 
ye

ars
2

6
8

10
 - 1

5 y
ea

rs
12

35
47

16
 - 1

7 y
ea

rs
19

43
62

To
tal

38
95

13
3  

 

12



Cr
ea

ted
 by

 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce

 Te
am

 
 

Pa
ge

 5 
of 

19
 

Et
hn
ici
ty

Un
de
r 1
 ye

ar
1-4

 yr
s

5-9
 yr
s

10
-15

 yr
s

16
-17

 yr
s
To
tal

As
ian

 
1

3
0

10
18

32
Bl
ac
k 

0
0

2
9

5
16

Mi
xe
d 

1
4

3
12

9
29

No
t S
tat
ed

0
2

1
0

0
3

Ot
he
r

0
0

1
2

10
13

Wh
ite
 

1
4

1
14

20
40

To
tal

3
13

8
47

62
13
3

3) 
CL

A 
Ag

e a
nd

 Et
hn

ici
ty 

Br
ea
kd

ow
n 

 

0510152025

As
ian

 
Bla

ck 
Mi

xe
d 

No
t S

tat
ed

Ot
he

r
Wh

ite
 

1
0

1
0

0
1

3

0

4
2

0

4

0
2

3
1

1
1

10
9

12

0
2

14

18

5

9

0

10

20

Count

Eth
nic

ity

Ch
ild

ren
 Lo

oke
d A

fte
r b

y A
ge

 an
d E

thn
icit

y 

Un
de

r 1
 ye

ar
1-4

 yr
s

5-9
 yr

s
10

-15
 yr

s
16

-17
 yr

s

 
 

13



Cr
ea

ted
 by

 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce

 Te
am

 
 

Pa
ge

 6 
of 

19
 

 

4) 
CL

A 
by

 E
thn

ici
ty 

   

As
ian

 
24

%

Bla
ck

 
12

%

M
ixe

d 
22

%

No
t S

ta
te

d
2%

Ot
he

r
10

%

W
hit

e 
30

%

Eth
nic

ity
 of

 Ch
ild

ren
 Lo

oke
d A

fte
r

 
Et

hn
ici

ty
No

. o
f C

LA
As

ian
 

32
Bl

ac
k 

16
Mi

xe
d 

29
No

t S
tat

ed
3

Ot
he

r
13

Wh
ite

 
40

To
tal

13
3  

14



Cr
ea

ted
 by

 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce

 Te
am

 
 

Pa
ge

 7 
of 

19
 

 

5) 
CL

A 
by

 E
thn

ici
ty 

& 
Ge

nd
er 

 

0510152025303540

As
ian

 
Bl
ac
k 

M
ixe

d 
No

t S
ta
te
d

Ot
he
r

W
hi
te
 

4
6

13

0
2

13

28

10

16

3

11

27

32

16

29

3

13

40

Co
un

t

Eth
nic

ity

Ch
ild

ren
 Lo

oke
d A

fte
r b

y E
thn

icit
y a

nd
 Ge

nd
er

Fe
m
ale

M
ale

To
ta
l

 
 Et

hn
ici
ty

Fe
ma

le
Ma

le
To

tal
As

ian
 

4
28

32
Bl
ac

k 
6

10
16

Mi
xe

d 
13

16
29

No
t S

tat
ed

0
3

3
Ot

he
r

2
11

13
Wh

ite
 

13
27

40
To

tal
38

95
13

3  

15



Cr
ea

ted
 by

 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce

 Te
am

 
 

Pa
ge

 8 
of 

19
 

 6) 
CL

A 
by

 P
lac

em
en

t T
yp

e  
 

Pla
ce

d f
or 

Ad
op

tio
n

3% Pla
ce

me
nt 

wit
h 

Re
lat

ive
 or

 Fr
ien

d
1%

Fo
ste

r C
are

r -
Inh

ou
se

32
%

Fo
ste

r C
are

r -
Ag

en
cy

23
%

Se
cu

re 
Un

it
0%

Re
sid

en
tia

l 
Ac

co
mm

od
ati

on
15

%

Re
sid

en
tia

l Sc
ho

ols
9%

Pla
ce

d w
ith

 Pa
ren

ts
2%Ind

ep
en

de
nt 

Liv
ing

13
%

Mi
ssi

ng
 fro

m 
Pla

ce
me

nt
2%

Yo
un

g O
ffe

nd
ers

 
Ins

titu
tio

n o
r P

ris
on

0%

Typ
es 

of 
Pla

cem
en

ts f
or 

Ch
ild

ren
 Lo

oke
d A

fte
r

Pla
ce

me
nt 

Ty
pe

Co
un

t
Pla

ce
d f

or 
Ad

op
tio
n

4
Pla

ce
me

nt 
wit

h R
ela

tiv
e o

r F
rie

nd
2

Fo
ste

r C
are

r - 
Inh

ou
se

42
Fo

ste
r C

are
r - 

Ag
en

cy
31

Se
cu
re 

Un
it

0
Re

sid
en

tia
l A

cc
om

mo
da

tio
n

20
Re

sid
en

tia
l S

ch
oo

ls
12

Pla
ce
d w

ith
 Pa

ren
ts

2
Ind

ep
en

de
nt 

Liv
ing

17
Mi
ss
ing

 fro
m 

Pla
ce
me

nt
3

Yo
un

g O
ffe

nd
ers

 In
sti
tut

ion
 or

 Pr
iso

n
0

Gr
an

d T
ota

l
13

3  
 

16



Cr
ea

ted
 by

 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce

 Te
am

 
 

Pa
ge

 9 
of 

19
 

Ca
teg

or
y O

f N
ee

d
Co

un
t

Ab
se
nt 

pa
ren

tin
g

25
Ab

us
e o

r N
eg

lec
t

61
Ch

ild
 D
isa

bil
ity

12
Fa

mi
ly d

ys
fun

cti
on

18
Fa

mi
ly i

n a
cu
te 

str
es
s

6
Pa

ren
tal
 illn

es
s o

r d
isa

bil
ity

6
So

cia
lly 

un
ac
ce
pta

ble
 be

ha
vio

ur
5

Gr
an

d T
ota

l
13

3

7) 
Br
ea
kd

ow
n o

f C
ate

go
ry 

of 
Ne

ed
 of

 C
LA

 
 Th

e b
rea

kd
ow

n o
f c

ate
go

ry 
of 

ne
ed

 as
 re

co
rde

d w
he

n a
 ch

ild
 be

co
me

s l
oo

ke
d a

fte
r. 

 

Ab
se
nt 
pa
ren

tin
g

19
%

Ab
us
e o

r N
eg
lec
t

46
%

Ch
ild
 D
isa
bil
ity

9%

Fa
mi
ly 
dy
sfu

nc
tio
n

14
%Fa
mi
ly 
in 

ac
ute

 st
res

s
4%

Pa
ren

tal
 ill
ne
ss
 

or 
dis

ab
ilit
y

4%

So
cia
lly
 

un
ac
ce
pta

ble
 

be
ha
vio

ur
4%

Ch
ild

ren
 Lo

ok
ed

 Af
ter

 by
 Ca

teg
or

y O
f N

ee
d

 
   

17



Cr
ea

ted
 by

 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce

 Te
am

 
 

Pa
ge

 10
 of

 19
 

8) 
Ch

ild
ren

 Lo
ok

ed
 A
fte

r -
 O
the

r D
ata

: 
 

 
31
 M
ay
  

20
09
 

31
 Au

g 
20
09
 

30
 N
ov
 

20
09
 

28
 Fe

b 
20
10
 

31
 M
ay
  

20
10
 

31
 Au

g 
20
10
 

30
 N
ov
 

20
10
 

 N
um

be
r o

f c
hil
dre

n p
lac

ed
 ou

t o
f b

oro
ug
h: 

 
83
 

85
 

68
 

66
 

68
 

81
 

70
 

 O
f th

os
e, 
wh

o a
re 

pla
ce
d m

ore
 th
an
 20

 m
ile
s: 

41
 

43
 

28
 

25
 

28
 

31
 

32
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Br
ea

kd
ow

n o
f ty

pe
s o

f R
es

ide
nti

al 
Pla

ce
me

nts
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
30
4 H

on
ey
po
t L
an
e: 
  

5 
4 

3 
5 

3 
4 

4 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Ex

ter
na
l C

hil
dre

n’s
 H
om

es
:  

9 
11
 

10
 

14
 

11
 

14
 

13
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Se
cu
re 

Un
it: 

 
3 

3 
2 

1 
2 

1 
0 

Yo
un
g O

ffe
nd
er’
s I
ns
titu

tio
n: 

 1
 

1 
0 

0 
0 

0 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Ot
he
r s
up
po
rtiv

e r
es
ide

nti
al 
pla

ce
me

nts
  

(pr
e -

 in
de
pe
nd
en
ce
, m

oth
er 

& b
ab
y e

tc)
:  

1 
4 

1 
5 

0 
1 

0 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Re

sid
en
tia
l S

ch
oo
ls:

  
14
 

14
 

11
 

10
 

11
 

13
 

12
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

So
cia

l W
ork

 Al
loc

ati
on
:  

10
0%

 
98
.8%

 
97
.6%

 
99
.4%

 
10
0%

 
10
0%

 
10
0%

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Ad

op
tio
ns
 & 

Sp
ec
ial
 G
ua
rdi
an
sh
ip 
Or
de
rs:
 

(ou
r ta

rge
t fo

r a
do
pti
on
s i
s 1

4) 
20
  fo

r 
20
08
-09

 
3 t

o 
da
te 

6 t
o 

da
te 

11
 to
 

da
te 

13
  fo

r 
20
09
-10

 
15
 to
 

da
te 

16
 to
 

da
te 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

CL
A 

KS
2 &

 G
CS

E R
es

ult
s -

   
 

 
 

20
07

 
20

08
 

20
09

  
20

10
 

(pr
ov

.) 
Att

ain
ed
 at
 le
as
t L
ev
el 
4 i
n M

ath
s a

t e
nd
 of
 KS

2 
 

 
 

25
% 

43
% 

50
% 

50
% 

Att
ain

ed
 at
 le
as
t L
ev
el 
4 i
n E

ng
lish

  a
t e
nd
 of

 KS
2 

 
 

 
50
% 

43
% 

50
% 

50
% 

GC
SE

: A
tta

ine
d a

t le
as
t 1

 A*
 - G

  
 

 
 

46
.2%

 
66
.7%

 
57
.1%

 
47
.1%

 
GC

SE
: A

tta
ine

d 5
 or

 m
ore

 A*
 - G

   
 

 
 

43
.2%

 
33
.3%

 
57
.1%

 
41
.2%

 
GC

SE
: A

tta
ine

d 5
 or

 m
ore

 A*
 - C

 
 

 
 

 5.
4%

 
11
.1%

 
14
.3%

 
11
.8%

 
GC

SE
: A

tta
ine

d 5
 or

 m
ore

 A*
 - C

 in
c E

ng
. &

 M
ath

s 
 

 
 

 
ne
w 
 

7.1
% 

11
.8%

 

18



Cr
ea

ted
 by

 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce

 Te
am

 
 

Pa
ge

 11
 of

 19
 

 

9) 
Sa

fet
y o

f V
uln

era
ble

 C
hil

dr
en

 (C
hil

dr
en

 Pr
ote

cti
on

 Pl
an

s) 
  

Th
ere

 w
ere

 18
3 c

hil
dre

n w
ho
 ha

ve
 a 

Ch
ild
 Pr

ote
cti
on
 Pl

an
 in
 H
arr

ow
 on

 30
 N
ov
em

be
r 2

01
0. 

 Th
e b

ar 
ch
art

 be
low

 sh
ow

s t
he
 nu

mb
er 

of 
ch
ild
ren

 w
ith
 C
hil
d P

rot
ec
tio
n P

lan
s b

y q
ua
rte

rs 
sin

ce
 20

06
  

 

02040608010
0

12
0

14
0

16
0

18
0

20
0 De

c-0
6M

ar-
07

Jun
-07

Se
p-0

7D
ec

-07
Ma

r-0
8
Jun

-08
Se
p-0

8D
ec

-08
Ma

r-0
9
Jun

-09
Se
p-0

9D
ec

-09
Ma

r-1
0
Jun

-10
Se
p-1

0D
ec

-10

14
8

13
7

14
4

14
7

13
8

10
9

13
5

15
8

16
1

15
5

15
9

16
0

17
4

17
9

17
7

19
1

18
3

Count

Nu
m

be
r o

f C
hi

ld
re

n w
ith

 a 
Ch

ild
 Pr

ot
ec

tio
n P

lan

 
 

19



Cr
ea

ted
 by

 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce

 Te
am

 
 

Pa
ge

 12
 of

 19
 

Ag
e

Fe
ma

le
Ma

le
To

tal
Un

de
r 1

 ye
ar

6
1

7
1 -

 4 
ye

ars
16

24
40

5 -
 9 

ye
ars

21
29

50
10

 - 1
5 y

ea
rs

36
37

73
16

 - 1
7 y

ea
rs

6
4

10
To

tal
85

95
18

0

 

10
) C

hil
dr
en

 w
ho

 ha
ve
 a 

CP
P b

y A
ge

 an
d G

en
de

r 
 

01020304050607080

Un
de

r 1
 ye

ar
1 -

4 y
ea

rs
5 -

9 y
ea

rs
10

 -1
5 y

ea
rs

16
 -1

7 y
ea

rs

6

16
21

36

6
1

24
29

37

4
7

40

50

73

10

Count

Ag
e B

an
d

Ch
ild

ren
 wi

th 
Ch

ild
 Pr

ote
cti

on
 Pla

ns 
by

 Ag
e a

nd
 Ge

nd
er

Fe
ma

le

Ma
le

To
tal

 
 Th

ree
 un

bo
rn 

ch
ild
ren

 w
ith
 ge

nd
er 

no
t re

co
rde

d

20



Cr
ea

ted
 by

 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce

 Te
am

 
 

Pa
ge

 13
 of

 19
 

Et
hn

ici
ty

No
. O

f C
PP

As
ian

 
41

Bl
ac

k 
29

M
ixe

d 
40

No
t O

bt
ain

ed
7

O
th

er
16

W
hit

e 
50

To
tal

18
3

 11
) E

thn
ici

ty 
of 

Ch
ild

ren
 w
ith

 a 
Ch

ild
 Pr

ote
cti

on
 Pl

an
 

   

As
ian

 
22

%

Bla
ck

 
16

%

M
ixe

d 
22

%

No
t O

bt
ain

ed
4%

Ot
he

r
9%

W
hit

e 
27

%

Eth
nic

ity
 of

 Ch
ild

ren
 wi

th 
a C

hil
d P

rot
ect

ion
 Pla

n 

 
 

21



Cr
ea

ted
 by

 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce

 Te
am

 
 

Pa
ge

 14
 of

 19
 

Et
hn

ici
ty

Fe
ma

le
Ma

le
To

tal
As
ia
n

17
23

40
Bl
ac
k

11
18

29
M
ixe
d

18
22

40
No
t O
bt
ain
ed

3
2

5
O
th
er

10
6

16
W
hi
te

26
24

50
To

tal
85

95
18

0

 

12
) E

thn
ici

ty 
& 
Ge

nd
er
 B
rea

kd
ow

n o
f C

hil
dr
en

 w
ith

 a 
Ch

ild
 Pr

ote
cti

on
 Pl

an
 

   

05101520253035404550

As
ian

Bl
ac
k

M
ixe

d
No

t O
bt
ain

ed
Ot
he
r

W
hi
te

17

11

18

3

10

26
23

18
22

2
6

24

40

29

40

5

16

50

Count

Eth
nic

ity

Ch
ild

ren
 wi

th 
a C

hil
d P

rot
ect

ion
 Pla

n b
y E

thn
icit

y a
nd

 Ge
nd

er

Fe
m
ale

M
ale

To
ta
l

 
 Th

ree
 un

bo
rn 

ch
ild
ren

 w
ith
 ge

nd
er 

no
t re

co
rde

d 
 

22



Cr
ea

ted
 by

 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce

 Te
am

 
 

Pa
ge

 15
 of

 19
 

 

13
) C

PP
 by

 C
ate

go
ry 

of 
Ab

us
e 

   

Em
oti

on
al a

bu
se

19
%

Ne
gle

ct
68

%

Ph
ysi

cal
 ab

use
10

% Sex
ua

l ab
use

3%

Ch
ild

ren
 wi

th 
a C

hil
d P

rot
ect

ion
 Pl

an
 by

 Ca
teg

ory
 of

 Ab
use

 

 
 Ca

teg
or

y O
f A

bu
se

Co
un

t
Em

oti
on

al 
ab

us
e

35
Ne

gle
ct

12
4

Ph
ys

ica
l a

bu
se

18
Se

xu
al 

ab
us

e
6

Gr
an

d T
ot

al
18

3  
 

23



Cr
ea

ted
 by

 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce

 Te
am

 
 

Pa
ge

 16
 of

 19
 

14
) C

PP
 C
ate

go
ry 

of 
Ab

us
e b

y E
thn

ici
ty 

Br
ea
kd

ow
n 

 

0510152025303540

As
ian

Bla
ck

Mi
xe
d

No
t st
ate
d

Ot
he
r

Wh
ite

14

1
4

3
4

9

20

25

33

4
2

40

7

1
3

0

6

1
0

2
0

0
4

0

Count

Eth
nic

ity

Ch
ild

ren
 wi

th 
a C

hil
d P

rot
ect

ion
 Pla

n b
y C

ate
go

ry 
of 

Ab
use

 an
d E

thn
icit

y 

Em
oti
on
al 
ab
use

Ne
gle
ct

Ph
ysi
cal
 ab
use

Se
xu
al a
bu
se

 
Ca
teg

or
y o

f A
bu
se

As
ian

Bl
ac
k

Mi
xe
d

No
t s
tat
ed

Ot
he
r

W
hit
e

To
tal

Em
ot
ion

al 
ab
us
e

14
1

4
3

4
9

33
Ne
gle

ct
20

25
33

4
2

40
13

3
Ph
ys
ica

l a
bu
se

7
1

3
0

6
1

19
Se
xu
al 
ab
us
e

0
2

0
0

4
0

6
To
tal

41
29

40
7

16
50

18
3  

 

24



Cr
ea

ted
 by

 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce

 Te
am

 
 

Pa
ge

 17
 of

 19
 

 

15
) D

ur
ati

on
 of

 C
hil

d P
ro
tec

tio
n P

lan
s 

 

0102030405060

Un
de

r 3
 

mo
nth

s
3 m

on
ths

 bu
t 

un
de

r 6
 

mo
nth

s

6 m
on

ths
 bu

t 
un

de
r 1

 ye
ar

1 y
ea

r b
ut 

un
de

r 2
 ye

ars
2 y

ea
rs 

bu
t 

un
de

r 3
 ye

ars
3 y

ea
rs 

an
d 

ov
er

34
41

32

53

13
10

Co
un

t

Tim
e S

pa
n

Len
gth

 Of
 Tim

e w
ith

 Ch
ild

 Pr
ote

cti
on

 Pla
n

 
 Le

ng
th 

Of
 Ti

me
 w

ith
 C

PP
Co

un
t

Un
de

r 3
 m

on
ths

34
3 m

on
ths

 bu
t u

nd
er 

6 m
on

ths
41

6 m
on

ths
 bu

t u
nd

er 
1 y

ea
r

32
1 y

ea
r b

ut 
un

de
r 2

 ye
ars

53
2 y

ea
rs 

bu
t u

nd
er 

3 y
ea

rs
13

3 y
ea

rs 
an

d o
ve

r
10

To
tal

18
3  

25



Cr
ea

ted
 by

 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce

 Te
am

 
 

Pa
ge

 18
 of

 19
 

 16
) N

um
be

rs 
of 

Ch
ild

ren
 Lo

ok
ed

 A
fte

r &
 C
hil

dr
en

 w
ith

 C
hil

d P
ro
tec

tio
n P

lan
 

  

020406080100120140160180200220

No
v-0

6
Fe
b-0

7
Ma

y-0
7

Au
g-0

7
No

v-0
7

Fe
b-0

8
Ma

y-0
8

Au
g-0

8
No

v-0
8

Fe
b-0

9
Ma

y-0
9

Au
g-0

9
No

v-0
9

Fe
b-1

0
Ma

y-1
0

Au
g-1

0
No

v-1
0

Count

M
on

th

Nu
m

be
rs

 of
 Lo

ok
ed

 A
fte

r C
hi

ld
re

n a
nd

 Ch
ild

re
n w

ith
 a 

Ch
ild

 Pr
ot

ec
tio

n P
lan

CLA
CP

P

 
  

26



Cr
ea

ted
 by

 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce

 Te
am

 
 

Pa
ge

 19
 of

 19
 

17
) K

ey
 Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 In

dic
ato

rs 
for

 th
e e

nd
 of

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
01
0 

 PI 
Re

f
PI 

De
sc
rip

tio
n

Ha
rro

w 
08

/09
Ha

rro
w 

09
/10

SN 08
/09

SN
 

09
/10

En
gla

nd
08

/09
En

gla
nd

09
/10

Ta
rg
et 

10
/11

Q2 Se
p 1

0
Oc

t 1
0

No
v 1

0
On

 ta
rg
et?

NI
 59

 
Tim

eli
ne
ss
 of

 In
itia

l A
ss
es
sm

en
ts 

(10
 w
ork

ing
 da

ys
) -
 N
I fr

om
 20

10
/11

-
85

.5
-

74
.0

-
75

.5
10
0.0

75
.19

76
.89

78
.78

No
t o

n 
tar

ge
t

NI
 60

Tim
eli
ne
ss
 of

 C
ore

 As
se
ss
me

nts
76
.4

84
.1

83
.4

73
.8

78
.0

78
.1

83
.0

71
.43

72
.27

75
.17

No
t o

n 
tar

ge
t

NI
 61

Tim
eli
ne
ss
 of

 C
LA

 ad
op
tio
ns
 fo

llo
win

g 
ag

en
cy
 de

cis
ion

78
.6

80
.0

71
.5

59
.7

75
.8

72
.4

10
0.0

66
.67

66
.67

75
.00

No
t o

n 
tar

ge
t

NI
 62

CL
A p

lac
em

en
t s
tab

ility
: n
um

be
r o

f 
mo

ve
s

9.5
11

.9
9.4

11
.1

10
.7

10
.9

10
.0

3.8
2

6.1
1

7.5
2

No
t o

n 
tar

ge
t

NI
 63

CL
A p

lac
em

en
t s
tab

ility
: le

ng
th 
of 

pla
ce
me

nt
68
.3

68
.6

66
.1

67
.6

67
.0

68
.0

68
.0

63
.33

66
.67

68
.97

On
 ta
rge

t

NI
 64

Ce
as
ed
 C
PP

 th
at 
las

ted
 2 
or 

mo
re 

ye
ars

7.9
3.6

6.8
7.2

6.0
5.9

10
.0

12
.99

12
.63

13
.46

No
t o

n 
tar

ge
t

NI
 65

CP
P f

or 
2n

d o
r s
ub
se
qu
en
t ti
me

12
.2

8.3
9.8

12
.1

13
.0

13
.4

10
.0

11
.11

11
.39

9.0
0

On
 ta
rge

t

NI
 66

Tim
eli
ne
ss
 of

 C
LA

 re
vie

ws
98
.6

97
.9

90
.7

90
.9

90
.9

90
.5

10
0.0

97
.74

97
.71

96
.90

No
t o

n 
tar

ge
t

NI
 67

Tim
eli
ne
ss
 of

 C
PP

 re
vie

ws
10

0.0
10
0.0

99
.6

98
.5

99
.0

96
.8

10
0.0

10
0.0

0
10
0.0

0
10

0.0
0

On
 ta
rge

t

NI
 68

Re
fer

ral
s g

oin
g o

n t
o I
nit
ial
 As

se
ss
me

nt
71
.6

62
.8

63
.9

67
.3

64
.0

65
.5

75
.0

64
.54

61
.90

58
.11

No
t o

n 
tar

ge
t

NI
 14

7
Ca

re 
lea

ve
rs 
in 
su
ita
ble

 ac
co
mm

od
ati
on

95
.5

92
.0

89
.6

88
.7

89
.6

90
.3

88
.0

10
0.0

0
10
0.0

0
10

0.0
0

On
 ta
rge

t

NI
 14

8
Ca

re 
lea

ve
rs 
in 
ed
uc
ati
on
, e
mp

loy
me

nt 
or 

tra
ini
ng

68
.2

72
.0

67
.6

64
.6

63
.0

62
.1

75
.0

40
.00

57
.14

57
.14

No
t o

n 
tar

ge
t

 
 Ha

rro
w's

 SN
's:
  B

arn
et,

 C
roy

do
n, 

Ea
lin

g, 
En

fie
ld,

 H
illin

gd
on

, H
ou

ns
low

, K
ing

sto
n, 

Me
rto

n, 
Re

db
rid

ge
, S

lou
gh

  
 Al

l In
dic

ato
rs 

are
 m

ea
su

red
 ye

ar-
to-

da
te 

un
les

s o
the

rw
ise

 st
ate

d

Gr
ea

ter
 th

an
 or

 eq
ua

l to
 th

e u
pp

er 
qu

art
ile

Gr
ea

ter
 th

an
 or

 eq
ua

l to
 th

e m
ed

ian
, b

ut 
les

s t
ha

n u
pp

er 
qu

art
ile

Gr
ea

ter
 th

an
 or

 eq
ua

l to
 th

e l
ow

er 
qu

art
ile

, b
ut 

les
s t

ha
n m

ed
ian

Le
ss

 th
an

 th
e l

ow
er 

qu
art

ile

An
 in

dic
ato

r is
 as

se
ss

ed
 to

 be
 'o

n t
arg

et'
 if 

it i
s b

ett
er 

tha
n, 

or 
wit

hin
 2 

pe
rce

nta
ge

 po
int

s o
f th

e t
arg

et.
 

Da
rk 

Gr
ee

n
Lig

ht
 G

ree
n 

Am
be

r
Re

d

 

27



28

This page is intentionally left blank



CIN Census 2009/10 National Indicators  
National and statistical neighbour comparison 
 
 
Data is taken from DfE statistical first release for CIN Census return (published on 30/11/2010): 
http://www.education.gov.uk/rsgateway/DB/STR/d000970/index.shtml 
 
Harrow's Statistical Neighbours are: Barnet, Croydon, Ealing, Enfield, Hillingdon, Hounslow, Kingston, 
Merton, Redbridge, Slough; these are coloured orange on the graphs. 
 
The London 4 Star authorities are: Camden, City of London, Kensington & Chelsea, Tower Hamlets, 
Lewisham, Wandsworth, Kingston upon Thames, Richmond upon Thames.   
 
CAA banding is calculated by comparison with England quartile scores (included below). 
 
 
NI 59 – Timeliness of Initial Assessments (7 days) 
 
Polarity  Harrow 

score 
England 
Avg 

SN 
Avg 

London 
Avg 

London 
4* Avg 

Quartile 
1 

Median Quartile 
3 

CAA 
banding 

High 71.2 67.3 63.8 67.8 79.2 59.3 69.4 80.2 Light Green 
 

  

29



NI 59 – Timeliness of Initial Assessments (10 days) 
 
Polarity  Harrow 

score 
England 
Avg 

SN 
Avg 

London 
Avg 

London 
4* Avg 

Quartile 
1 

Median Quartile 
3 

CAA 
banding 

High 85.0 75.5 74.0 74.0 86.0 68.7 77.5 86.3 Light Green 
 
 

 

30



NI 60 – Timeliness of Core Assessments 
 
Polarity  Harrow 

score 
England 
Avg 

SN 
Avg 

London 
Avg 

London 
4* Avg 

Quartile 
1 

Median Quartile 
3 

CAA 
banding 

High 84.1 78.1 73.8 72.3 82.4 65.3 75.3 82.5 Dark Green 
 

  

31



NI 64 – Ceased CPP lasting 2 or more years 
 
Polarity  Harrow 

score 
England 
Avg 

SN 
Avg 

London 
Avg 

London 
4* Avg 

Quartile 
1 

Median Quartile 
3 

CAA 
banding 

Low 3.6 5.9 7.2 7.9 9.2 4.1 6.3 8.9 Dark Green 
 
 
NI 65 – CPP for 2nd or subsequent time 
 
Polarity  Harrow 

score 
England 
Avg 

SN 
Avg 

London 
Avg 

London 
4* Avg 

Quartile 
1 

Median Quartile 
3 

CAA 
banding 

Low 8.3 13.4 12.1 11.6 9.8 9.4 12.9 16.1 Dark Green 
 

 

32



NI 67 – Timeliness of CPP Reviews 
 
Polarity  Harrow 

score 
England 
Avg 

SN 
Avg 

London 
Avg 

London 
4* Avg 

Quartile 
1 

Median Quartile 
3 

CAA 
banding 

High 100 96.8 98.5 95.6 97.3 97.1 95.5 100 Dark Green 
 
 
NI 68 – Referrals going on to Initial Assessment 
 
Polarity  Harrow 

score 
England 
Avg 

SN 
Avg 

London 
Avg 

London 
4* Avg 

Quartile 
1 

Median Quartile 
3 

CAA 
banding 

Middle 63.0 65.5 67.3 66.0 72.1 55.2 66.2 83.5 N/A 
 

 

33



Percentage of Initial CP Conferences held within 15 days of decision to proceed 
 
Polarity  Harrow 

score 
England 
Avg 

SN 
Avg 

London 
Avg 

London 
4* Avg 

Quartile 
1 

Median Quartile 
3 

CAA 
banding 

High 74.4 66.2 62.1 61.9 78.8 52.4 71.5 86.4 Light Green 
 
 

  
 
 
 

34



SSDA903 2009/10 National Indicators  
National and statistical neighbour comparison 
 
 
Data is taken from DfE statistical first release for SSDA 903 return 
(http://www.dcsf.gov.uk/rsgateway/DB/SFR/s000960/index.shtml) 
 
Harrow's Statistical Neighbours are: Barnet, Croydon, Ealing, Enfield, Hillingdon, Hounslow, Kingston, 
Merton, Redbridge, Slough; these are coloured orange on the graphs. 
 
The London 4 Star authorities are: Camden, City of London, Kensington & Chelsea, Tower Hamlets, 
Lewisham, Wandsworth, Kingston upon Thames, Richmond upon Thames.   
 
CAA banding is calculated by comparison with England quartile scores (included below). 
 
 
NI 58 - Emotional and behavioural health of CLA (SDQ scores) 
 
Polarity  Harrow 

score 
England 
Avg 

SN 
Avg 

London 
Avg 

London 
4* Avg 

Quartile 
1 

Median Quartile 
3 

CAA 
banding 

Low 14.3 14.2 12.5 13.5 13.9 13.4 14.2 15.1 Amber 
 

  

35



NI 62 - CLA placement stability (number of moves) 
 
Polarity  Harrow 

score 
England 
Avg 

SN 
Avg 

London 
Avg 

London 
4* Avg 

Quartile 
1 

Median Quartile 
3 

CAA 
banding 

Low 11.9 10.9 11.1 11.9 12.3 85 11.0 12.7 Amber 
 

  

36



NI 63 - CLA placement stability (length of placement) 
 
Polarity  Harrow 

score 
England 
Avg 

SN 
Avg 

London 
Avg 

London 
4* Avg 

Quartile 
1 

Median Quartile 
3 

CAA 
banding 

High 68.6 68.0 67.6 68.5 68.2 63.4 68.4 71.55 Light Green 
 

  

37



NI 66 - Timeliness of CLA reviews 
 
Polarity  Harrow 

score 
England 
Avg 

SN 
Avg 

London 
Avg 

London 
4* Avg 

Quartile 
1 

Median Quartile 
3 

CAA 
banding 

High 97.9 90.5 90.9 92.2 97.3 88.7 94.1 96.8 Dark Green 
 

 

38



NI 147 - Care Leavers in suitable accommodation 
 
Polarity  Harrow 

score 
England 
Avg 

SN 
Avg 

London 
Avg 

London 
4* Avg 

Quartile 
1 

Median Quartile 
3 

CAA 
banding 

High 92.0 90.3 88.7 87.7 98.5 88.2 92.9 96.0 Amber 
 

  

39



NI 148 - Care Leavers in education, employment or training 
 
Polarity  Harrow 

score 
England 
Avg 

SN 
Avg 

London 
Avg 

London 
4* Avg 

Quartile 
1 

Median Quartile 
3 

CAA 
banding 

High 72.0 62.1 64.6 61.6 74.6 53.3 62.5 87.5 Dark Green 
 

  

40



 
 

 

REPORT FOR: 
 

CORPORATE 
PARENTING PANEL 
 

Date of Meeting: 
 

11 January 2011 

Subject: 
 

Display for Councillors 

Key Decision:  
 

No 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Catherine Doran, Corporate Director of 
Children’s Services 
 

Portfolio Holder: 
 

Councillor Mitzi Green, Portfolio 
Holder for Children’s Services 

Exempt: 
 

No 

Decision subject to 
Call-in: 
 

Yes 

Enclosures: None 
 
Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
 
This report sets a proposal for publicising the work of Corporate Parenting 
and Beyond Limits (Harrow’s Children in Care Council).   
 
Recommendation:  that 
• the Panel be requested to authorise the Corporate Director of Children’s 

Services to set up of a display for Councillors - by members of Corporate 
Parenting and Beyond Limits - on annual basis; 

• The display is set up at a time that full Council meet in order to engage all 
Councillors; 

• The first display be set up prior to the April Council meeting; 
• Corporate Parenting consider other means by which to engage Councillors 

in the needs of children looked after. 

Agenda Item 8 
Pages 41 to 44 

41



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\2\5\AI00069521\$myznknop.doc 

 
Reason: (For recommendation) 
 
There is an expectation on Local Authorities from the white paper, ‘Care 
Matters-Time for Change, 2007’ and subsequent legislation that councillors 
understand their corporate parenting responsibilities towards children in care 
and are committed to fulfilling them. 
 
Corporate Parenting Panel has a pivotal role in promoting the needs of 
children looked after 
 

Section 2 – Report 
 
Background  
 
In September 1998 Frank Dobson, the then Secretary of State for Health, 
wrote to all councillors to launch Quality Protects, a five-year programme to 
transform children’s services, underlining their vital role in driving forward the 
initiative. This launched the concept of corporate parenting and placed 
collective responsibility on all local authorities to achieve good parenting for all 
children in the public care. It requires ownership and leadership at a senior 
level and includes all elected members. 
 
Following on from the plans set out in the white paper, ‘Care Matters – A time 
for Change, 2007’, the Children and Young Persons Act, 2008, placed a 
number of requirements upon Local Authorities and Elected Members, the 
aim being to improve outcomes for children in care and their families, with 
corporate parenting, and listening to the views of children and young people 
being key elements.  
 
There is rolling programme of officer led induction training for Councillors in 
relation to their Corporate Parenting responsibilities 
 
In addition, members of Corporate Parenting have participated in training 
events with children looked after which have also been attended by the wider 
Councillor group. 
  
However, the Cabinet approval of the establishment of Beyond Limits on 18th 
November 2010, together with their terms of reference and the Harrow Pledge 
to children looked after, provides a further opportunity to consider a wider 
engagement with other Councillors. 
The setting up of an annual display is seen as one of a number of initiatives 
by Corporate Parenting, together with Beyond Limits to promote the needs of 
children looked after with the wider Councillor group.  

42



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\2\5\AI00069521\$myznknop.doc 

Options considered 
 
None 
 
Implications of the Recommendation 
 
Approval of the recommendations will provide one of a number of possible 
means of highlighting both the needs of children looked after and the 
corporate parenting responsibilities of elected members. 
 
Financial Implications 
 
The financial cost for any printing and leaflets is being met by way of the Care 
Matters grant which is within the base budget held by the Divisional Director, 
Children's Services, Safeguarding, Family Placement & Support. No 
additional cost is anticipated. 
 
Risk Management Implications 
 
Risk included on Directorate risk register? No 
  
Separate risk register in place? No  
 
Corporate Priorities 
 
The corporate priority this report incorporates is: 
 
• Improve support for vulnerable people 
 
It will provide an opportunity to engage the wider Councillor group with the 
needs of children looked after and their responsibilities as Corporate Parents. 
 
Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 
 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Emma Stabler X  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: 14 December 2010 

   
 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Helen Ottino X  Monitoring Officer 
 
Date: 15 December 2010 

   
 

 
 
 

43



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\2\5\AI00069521\$myznknop.doc 

Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 
Papers 
 
Contact:  Andreas Kyriacou, Senior Professional, Safeguarding and 
Review, Children Looked After andreas.kyriacou@harrow.gov.uk 
 
Background Papers: None 
 

44


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	7 INFORMATION REPORT - Activity and Performance
	CLA & CPP Activity Jan 2011
	Collated 200910 national indicator graphs

	8 Display for Councillors

